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2023
42,582,299 95.3
2,101,737 4.7
44,684,036
( 6,245 ) 1000
2023
( ) ( )
)
342,384 121.80| 41,700,800 124.37| 42,582,299 95.3
1

2023 10
42 10

1 US ULTRA BOND CBT Sep23 (CBT) 19.48
2 S&P500 EMINI FUT Jun23 (CME) 10.90
3 US LONG BOND(CBT) Sep23 (CBT) 10.46
4 JPN 10Y BOND(OSE) Jun23 (OSE) 10.37
5 TOPIX INDX FUTR Jun23 (OSE) 9.22
6 FTSE 100 IDX FUT Jun23 (ICF) 8.14
7 LONG GILT FUTURE Sep23 (ICF) 6.98
8 S&P/TSX 60 IX FUT Jun23 (MSE) 6.97
9 Euro-BTP Future Jun23 (EUX) 6.75
10 | US 10YR NOTE (CBT)Sep23 (CBT) 6.44

2023
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2023
2022 2023

2021 31 60,869,252.54 8,507,695 108.04 15,101
2022 31 38,029,521.69 5,315,386 108.55 15,172
2023 31 47,523,171.39 6,642,314 93.82 13,113
2022 26,103,233.33 3,648,449 93.36 13,049
26,626,721.07 3,721,617 97.08 13,569
22,930,597.84 3,205,010 92.90 12,985
49,514,585.02 6,920,654 88.91 12,427
10 48,437,594.04 6,770,123 89.81 12,553
11 47,446,142.47 6,631,547 91.89 12,843
12 45,307,590.16 6,332,642 89.14 12,459
2023 47,523,171.39 6,642,314 93.82 13,113
46,039,271.18 6,434,909 91.71 12,818
46,650,293.79 6,520,312 93.94 13,130
45,993,370.93 6,428,493 94.96 13,273
44,684,035.75 6,245,488 94.82 13,253
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717,154 153,781 563,373
2020 23
(717,154) (153,781) (563,373)
2021
96,493 309,527 350,339
2021
96,493 309,527 350,339
2022
329,475 173,273 506,541
2022
329,475 173,273 506,541
2023
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AHL

2023 1 31
2023 1 31 2022 1 31

2,9 2,070,563 289,403 521,008 72,821
2,3,9 45,616,199 6,375,776 37,481,179 5,238,744
- - 300,000 41,931
9 51,024 7,132 79,215 11,072
47,737,786 6,672,310 38,381,402 5,364,569
5,9 30,329 4,239 7,890 1,103
5,9 - - 18,606 2,601
8,9 25,505 3,565 13,879 1,940
8,9 4,924 688 4,167 582
8,9 410 57 347 49
8,9 5,953 832 1,736 243
9 14,159 1,979 136,062 19,017
8,9 6,149 859 5,203 727
9 5,000 699 2,500 349
9 77,688 10,858 52,600 7,352
170,117 23,777 242,990 33,963
47,567,669 6,648,533 38,138,412 5,330,606

4 506,541 350,339

1 93.91 13 108.86 15
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AHL

2023 1 31

2023 1 31 2022 1 31

(401,337) (56,095) 2,735,359 382,321

(2,444,006)  (341,599) (552,053)  (77,160)
] ; 1,984 277
(2,845,343)  (397,694) 2,185,290 305,438

8 151,165 21,128 273,596 38,241
8 21,659 3,027 55,682 7,783
8 53,273 7,446 76,061 10,631
5 90,001 12,579 90,494 12,648
5 73,289 10,244 65,709 9,184
77,333 10,809 78,996 11,041

8 42,619 5,957 62,223 8,697
8 3,551 496 5,185 725
8 10,000 1,398 16,203 2,265
522,890 73,084 724,149 101,214

(3,368,233) (470,778) 1,461,141 204,224
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2023 1 31 2022 1 31

38,138,412 5,330,606 60,353,259 8,435,575

29,451,101 4,116,380 10,952,846 1,530,879
(16,653,611)  (2,327,675) (34,628,834) (4,840,072)

(3,368,233) (470,778) 1,461,141 204,224

47,567,669 6,648,533 38,138,412 5,330,606
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AHL
2023 1 31

2023 1 31 2022 1 31

(3,368,233)  (470,778) 1,461,141 204,224

(25,700,000)  (3,592,089)  (3,799,999)  (531,126)

14,720,000 2,057,414 28,600,000 3,997,422

400,974 56,044 (2,735,511)  (382,342)

2,444,006 341,599 552,053 77,160

300,000 41,931 (300,000) (41,931)

- - 1,203 168

28,191 3,940 32,662 4,565

] - 18,409 2,573

22,439 3,136 (22,298) (3,117)

- - (400,000) (55,908)

(18,606) (2,601) (832) (116)

11,626 1,625 (24,401) (3,411)

757 106 (585) (82)

63 9 (49) @

4,217 589 (8,475) (1,185)

(121,903) (17,038) 136,062 19,017

946 132 (2,429) (340)

2,500 349 2,500 349

25,088 3,507 21,524 3,008

(11,247,935)  (1,572,124) 23,530,975 3,288,924

29,451,101 4,116,380 10,952,846 1,530,879

(16,653,611)  (2,327,675)  (34,628,834)  (4,840,072)

12,797,490 1,788,705  (23,675,988)  (3,309,193)

1,549,555 216,581 (145,013) (20,268)

521,008 72,821 666,021 93,090

2,070,563 289,403 521,008 72,821

71/210



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AHL
2023 1 31
1.
AHL
2013 12 2
1]
Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited 2020 2
24
One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman Islands
AHL
I
MUFG Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
Daiwa Asset Management (Europe) Ltd
CsC
2021
12 6 CsC 2022 11
2025 1 31
(i) 1,000,000
(ii)

72/210



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AHL
2023 1 31
1.
1
1 34
1
/
1
1
2023 6 2
2.
a
IFRS IASB
b
FVTPL
c
IFRS
9

73/210



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AHL
2023 1 31
2.
e
i 2022 2 1
IFRS IFRS
i 2022 2 1
2022 2 1
f

FVTPL

FVTPL

ii

FVTPL

FVTPL

FVTPL

74/210



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AHL

2023 1 31

if

FVTPL

FVTPL FVTPL
FVTPL

iii

75/210



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AHL
2023 1 31
2.
f
iii
IFRS 13
1
3 3
1
2 1
3
v
v
12 ECL

12

2023 1 31

Vi

2023 1 31

76/210



AHL

2023 1 31

EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Vil

vili

h FVTPL
FVTPL

771210



AHL

2023 1 31

EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

IAS 32

structured entity

2023 1 31

78/210



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AHL
2023 1 31
3.
2023 1 31 2022 1 31 2023 1 31
2022 1 31
2023
/
AHL
| 45,353,930 45,616,199 8.80% 100.00% 95.90% 2
2022
/
AHL
| 34,774,904 37,481,179 4.42%  42.17% 98.28% 2
4.
1
1 1

79/210



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

80/210

AHL
2023 1 31
4.
2023 2022
2022 2 1 350,339 563,373
329,475 96,493
(173,273) (309,527)
2023 1 31 506,541 350,339
7
/
2020



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AHL
2023 1 31
5.
250,000,000 0.08% 250,000,000
0.07% 500,000,000 0.06%
7,000 2023 1 31 2023 1
31
2023 1 31
2023 1 31
6.
7.
2063 12 2
1 2023 1
31
IAS 12

2023 1 31 2022 1 31

81/210



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AHL
2023 1 31
8.
10,000
2023 1 31 2022 1
31 2023 1 31 2022 1 31
0.15%
2023 1 31 2022 1 31
2023 1 31 2022 1 31
0.12%
2023 1 31 2022 1
31 2023 1 31 2022 1 31

34

82/210



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AHL
2023 1 31
8.
5,000
2023 1 31 2022 1 31
2023 1 31 2022 1 31
0.01%
2023 1 31 2022 1 31
2023 1 31 2022 1 31
0 1 20
1
0.05%
(ii) 0.20%
365
(ii)
2023 1 31 2022 1 31
2023 1 31 2022 1 31
0 1 20
0.40%
(i) 0.75%
2023 1 31 2022 1 31 2023 1 31

2022 1 31

83/210



AHL

2023 1 31

EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

9.1

A)
()

(ii)

84/210



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AHL
2023 1 31
9.
9.1
A)
(ii)
2,070,563 2022 521,008
2023 1 31 50
1,035
2022 261
(ii)
2023 1 31 1% 456,162

2022 374,812 1%

85/210



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AHL
2023 1 31
9.
9.1
A
(iii)
2023 1 31
%
266,526 0.05%
900,471 0.17%
(30,876) (0.01%)
EU 934,792 0.18%
310,468,966 59.87%
(1,058,731) (0.20%)
(306,977) (0.06%)
68,244 0.01%
16,386 0.00%
(18,543) 0.00%
(16,921) 0.00%
102,773 0.020%
434,768 0.08%
(97,464) (0.02%)
326,369 0.06%
81,023 0.02%
524,008 0.10%
164,823,026 31.78%

477,417,840 92.05%

86/210



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AHL
2023 1 31
2022 1 31
%
(1,252,098) (0.15%)
205,662 0.02%
(267,758) (0.03%)
EU (197,902) (0.02%)
349,295,458 41.22%
(2,804,163) (0.33%)
(225,752) (0.03%)
(963,102) (0.11%)
(2,191,387) (0.26%)
(325,815) (0.04%)
(27,935) (0.00%)
61,231 0.01%
(1,389,266) (0.16%)
(309,654) (0.04%)
(635,176) (0.07%)
(149,076) (0.02%)
(493,529) (0.06%)
281,414,733 33.21%

619,744,471 73.14%

87/210



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AHL
2023 1 31
9.
9.1
(B)
/
2023 1 31 2022 1 31
34
2023 1 31 2022 1 31

2023 1 31 2022 1 31
45,616,199 37,481,179
2,070,563 521,008

- 300,000
51,024 79,215

47,737,786 38,381,402

88/210



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AHL
2023 1 31
9.
9.1
©
3 3
2023 1 31 1
30,329 - 30,329
25,505 - 25,505
4,924 - 4,924
410 - 410
5,953 - 5,953
6,149 - 6,149
14,159 - 14,159
5,000 - 5,000
77,688 - 77,688
170,117 - 170,117
3 3
2022 1 31 1
7,890 - 7,890
18,606 - 18,606
13,879 - 13,879
4,167 - 4,167
347 - 347
1,736 - 1,736
5,203 - 5,203
136,062 - 136,062
2,500 - 2,500
52,600 - 52,600

242,990 - 242,990

89/210



AHL

2023 1 31

EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

9.1

©

2023 1 31

(D)

9.2

A)

(B)

2022 1 31

90/210



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AHL

2023 1 31

9.2

©

(D)

2023 1 31 2022 1 31

(E)

2023 1 31 2022 1
31

91/210



AHL

2023 1 31

EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

9.2

(F)

©)

(H)

9.3

IFRS 13

2025 1 31

92/210



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AHL
2023 1 31
9.
9.3
1
2 1
3

93/210



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AHL
2023 1 31
9.
9.3
2023 1 31 2022 1 31
2023 1 31
1 2 3
AHL
I $ - $ 45616,199 $ - $ 45,616,199
$ - $ 45,616,199 $ - 8 45,616,199
2022 1 31
1 2 3
AHL
| $ - $ 37481179 $ - $ 37,481,179
$ - $ 37,481,179 $ - $ 37,481,179

2023 1 31 2022 1 31 1 2 3

94/210



EDINETOOOO

DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

AHL
2023 1 31
9.
9.3
2
/
/
2
2 2023 1 31

2022 1 31 2

(i) 2023 1 31 2022 1 31
9.4

2023 1 31 518,597,024 2023 1 31

474,106,981 471,226,874
10,881,329 4,690,364 328,185,089
331,495,948
1
10.
2023 6 2
UBS UBS
FINMA 2023 3 19

95/210



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AHL

2023 1 31

10.
2023 6 2 UBS

2023 2 1 2023 6 2 3,470,614

96/210



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Statement of Financial Position

As at Janvary 31, 2023
{Seated in United Siates dollars)

Mote January 31, 2023 January 31, 2022

UsD LUsD

Assets

Cash 29 2,070,563 521,008

Invesiments in Selected Fund 239 45,616,199 37481179

Due from broker - 300,000

Prepayments and other assets 9 51.024 79.215
Total assets 47.737.786 38381402
Liahilities

Administration fees payable 59 30329 7,800

Professional fees payable 59 - 18.606

Distributor fees payable 8.9 25,505 13,879

Fee Agent fees payable 89 4,924 4,167

Agent Member Company fees payable bR 410 347

Manager Support Service Provider fees payable 8.9 5,953 1.736

Redemption payable 9 14,159 136,062

Investment Manager fees payable 8.9 6,140 5,203

Trustee fees payable 9 5.000 2,500

Other payables 9 TT.O8E 52,600
Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to

the holder of redeemable units) 170,017 242,990
Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable

units 47 5367 669 3i8.138.412
MNumber of units outstanding 4 506,541 350,339
Net asset value per unit 93.91 108,86

See gocompanying notes fo the financlal stafements.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the vear ended January 31, 2023
iSiated in United States dollars)

For the vear ended  For the year ended
Note January 31, 2023 January 31, 2022

UsD USIy
Met (loss)income from financial instruments at
FVTPL:
Met realized (loss)zain on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (401.337) 2735359
Net change in unrealized depreciation on financial
assels at fair value through profit or loss (2,444.006) (552,053}
Oither income - 1.984
Total net (losses)/gains on investments (2.845.343) 2185290
Operating expenses
Distributor Fees 8 151,165 273.596
Manager Support Service Provider Fees 8 21,659 55682
Investment Manager Fees 8 53,273 76,061
Administration fees 5 90,001 0,494
Professional fees 3 73,289 653,709
Other fees 77,333 78,996
Fee Agent Fees 8 42,619 62,223
Agent Member Company Fees 8 1,551 5,185
Trustee fees i 10,000 16,203
Total operating expenses 522,890 724,149
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to the
holder of redeemable units from operations 13,368,233) 1.461.141

See accompanving notes fo the financial statements.

98/210



EDINETOOOO

DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to the Holder of Redeemable Units

For the vear ended January 31, 2023
iSiated in United States dollars)

For the year ended  For the year ended
January 31, 2023 January 31, 2022
UsSD UsD
MNet assets attributable to the holder of redeemable
units at the beginning of the vear 38138412 60,353,259
Issie of redeemable units 29.451,101 10,952 346
Repurchase of redeemable units (16.653.611) (34,628,834)
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to the
holder of redeemable units from operations (3.368.233) 1.461,141
Met assets attributable to the holder of redeemable
units at the end of the vear 47,567,669 38138412

Kee goeompanving notes fo the finoncial staiemenis
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Statement of Cash Flows

For the vear ended January 31, 2023
{Srated in United Siates dollars)

For the vear ended  For the year ended
January 31, 2023 January 31, 2022

UsD Usp

Cash flows from operating activities
{ Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to the
holder of redeemable units from operations (3,368,233) 1,461,141
Adjustments to reconcile (decrease)/increase in net
assels attributable to the holder of redeemable
units from operations to cash (used in)/provided
by operating activities:

Purchases of investment in the Selected Fund (25,700,000) 13,799,900)
Proceeds from dispositions of investment in the
Selected Fund 14,720,000 28,600,000
Met realized loss/(gain) on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss 400,974 (2,735,511)
Met change in unrealized depreciation on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss 2,444,006 552,053
Decrease/{increase) in due from broker 300,000 | 300,000
Decrease in prepaid Trustees fees - 1,203
Decrease in prepayments and other assets 28,191 32,662
Decrease in subscription receivable - 18,400
Increase/{decrease) in Administration fees payable 32439 (22,208)
Decrease in due to broker - (400,000 )
Decrease in Professional fees payable [ 18,606) (832)
Increase/{decrease) in Distributor fees payable 11,626 (24.401)
Increase/idecrease) in Fee Agent fees pavable 757 (585)
Increase/{decrease) in Agent Member Company
fees pavable 63 (49)
Increase/(decrease) in Manager Support Service
Provider fees payable 4217 (8,475)
{Decrease)increase in Redemption payable (121,903) 136,062
Increase/(decrease) in Investment Manager fees
payable 946 {2.429)
Increase in Trustee fees payable 2,500 2,500
Increase in other payables 25,088 21,524
Met cash (used in)/provided by operating activities i 11,247,935) 23,530,975
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of redeemable units 29.451,101 10,952 846
Payment on repurchase of redeemable units (16,653,611) (34,628.834)
Net cash provided by/{used in) financing activities 12,797,490 (23,675,988)
Met increase/ decrease) in cash 1,549,555 (145,013)
Cash at bezinning of the vear 521,008 066,021
Cash at end of the year 2,070,563 521,008

See accompanyving notes fo the financial statemenis.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements

For the vear ended January 31, 2023
{Seated in United Siates dollars)

I. Incorporation and background information

Foreign Currency Denominated Man AHL Smart Leverage Strategy Fund (the “Series Trust™) is a series
trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 1 (the “Trust™), an open-ended umbrella unit trust
constituted by a master trust deed dated December 2, 2013, under Cayvman Islands law. The Series Trust
was established pursuant to a Supplemental Trust Deed dated February 24, 2020 and made between Elian
Trustee {Cayman) Limited (the “Trustee™), a trust company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman
Islands, and the Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the “Manager™). The principal office of the
Trustee and therefore the Series Trust is One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY [-9003,
Cayman Islands, All Unitholders are entitled to the benefit of, are bound by, and are deemed to have notice
of, the provisions of the Master Trust Deed and any trust deed supplemental thereto.

The Man AHL Active Balanced (the “Selected Fund™) aims to generate capital growth over the medium 1o
long term by providing dynamic exposure to a range of assets and to provide an excess refurn stream with a
stable level of volatility regardless of market conditions. Such excess return stream refers to a return in
excess of that which would be provided by investment in high-quality, short-dated government bills.

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to generate capital growth by investing substantially all of
the assets of the Series Trust into the | Class Shares of the Selected Fund, which invests in (among other
things) global equity indices futures and bond futures using a proprietary quantitative model.

The Administrator of the Series Trust is MUFG Fund Services {Cayman) Limited (the “Administrator”™).

The Investment Manager of the Series Trust is Daiwa Asset Management (Euvrope) Ltd (the “Investment
Manager™).

The Manager has authorised Daiwa Securities Co. Ltd. to act as a distributor of the units in Japan. The
Manager may appoint further distributors of the units in future (each a “Distributor”™ and collectively the
“Distributors™).

The Fee Agent of the Series Trust is Credit Suisse International (the “Fee Agent™)

Credit Suisse Securities (Japan) Limited acts as the Agent Member Company (the “Agent Member
Company™).

Daiwa Assel Management (Japan) Co, Lid., acts as the Manager Support Service Provider (the “Manager
Support Service Provider™).

On 6 December 2021, Corporation Service Company (“CSC") announced that a conditional agreement had
been reached on a recommended public offer for all issued and owtstanding ordinary shares of [ntertrust
Group of which the Trustee is a wholly owned subsidiary. In November 2022, CSC closed on its acquisition
of Intertrust Group.

Final Repurchase Deay

The Series Trust will continue until the earlier of Janvary 31, 2025 and the earliest practicable repurchase
day following the occurrence of a compulsory repurchase event (the “Final Repurchase Day™), unless
terminated earlier in accordance with the provisions of the Supplemental Trust Deed.

The units are compulsorily repurchased upon the first to occur of any of the following:

(i) the MNet Asset Value on any valuation day is USD$1,000.000 or less and on that valuation day or
thereafier the Manager determines that all of the units should be compulsorily repurchased by giving
notice to all unitholders; or

(i) the Trustee and the Manager agree that all of the units should be compulserily repurchased, (each a
“Compulsory Repurchase Event™).
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements

For the vear ended January 31, 2023
iStated in United States dollars)

I. Incorporation and background information {continued)

Upon the occurrence of a Compulsory Repurchase Event, each unit is repurchased on the Final Repurchase
Day at the final repurchase price per unit. The final repurchase price per unit is calculated by the
Administrator in its sole discretion in accordance with the Offering Memorandum and the Appendix 34 as
the MNet Asset Value per unit on the Final Repurchase Day (or if such day is not also a valuation day the
immediately preceding valuation day ). Repurchase Day is each dealing day which is also a day on which no
Series Trust disruption event occurs and/or such other day or days as the Manager may from time to ime
determine in respect of the Series Trust. Unitholder is able to receive an amount in respect of each unit
repurchased on any Repurchase Day prior to the Final Repurchase Day equal to the Net Asset Value per
unit as at the relevant Repurchase Day (or if that Repurchase Day is not also a valuation day the
immediately preceding valuation day) (the “Repurchase Price™). There is no repurchase fee applied to the
Repurchase Price in respect of each unit being repurchased,

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Trustee on June 02, 2023,
2. Significant accounting policies
fea) Statement of complianee

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS™) and imterpretations adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“TASE”)

b} Basis of measurement

The functional and presentation currency of the financial statements is the United States dollar and not
the local currency of the Cayman Islands, reflecting the fact that the units of the Series Trust are issued
and repurchased in United States dollars.

The financial statements are prepared on a fair value basis for financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), including investments in Selected Fund, Other financial assets and
liabilities and non-financial assets and liabilities are stated at amortised cost or historical cost,

fe) Use af estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements are described in Note 9,

(e} Foreign currency transiation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to United States dollars at the foreign currency
exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated to United States dollars at the foreign currency-closing exchange rate at
the reporting dates. MNon-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
measured at fair value are translated at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.

Foreign currency exchange differences arising on translation and realised gains and losses on disposals
or seitlements of monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements

For the vear ended January 31, 2023
{Srated in United Siates dollars)

2. Significant accounting palicies (continued)
fe) Accounting policy and disclosures

(i) Standards, amendments and interpretations that is effective for the financial year beginning
February 1, 2022,

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
herein. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise
stated, The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS). The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and requires the Trustee and the Manager to
exercise their judgment in the process of applying the Series Trust’s accounting policies,

(i) Mew standards, amendments and interpretations effective after February 1, 2022 and have not been
early adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after February 1, 2022, and have not been early adopted in preparing these
financial statements. None of these are expected o have a material effect on the financial
statements of the Series Trust,

() Financial insiruments
it Recognition and initial measwrement

The Series Trust initially recognises financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL on the trade
date, which is the daie at which the Series Trust becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the date on which
they are originated.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not at
FVTPL. transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

fii)  Classification and subsegient measurement

Classification of financial assets

Om initial recognition, the Series Trust classifies financial assets as measured at amortised cost or
FVTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:

® it i5 held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

e its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest,

All other financial assets of the Series Trust are measured at FVTPL.
The Series Trust has determined that it has two business models.

#  Held-to-collect business model: this includes cash, subscriptions receivable and prepayments
and other assets. These financial assets are held to collect contractual cash flow.

o Other business model: this includes investments in Selected Fund. These financial assets are
managed and their performance is evaluated, on a fair value basis, with frequent sales taking
place or based on the net asset value per unit obtained from their respective administrator,
which management deems to approximate fair value.
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2, Significant accounting policies (continued)
(0 Financial instruments (comtied)
{1 Classification and subsequent measurement (continmeed)
Reclassifications
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Series Trust
were to change its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected
financial assets would be reclassified on the first day of the first reporting year following the

change in the business model.

Classification of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading or it is
designated as such on initial recognition, Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value
and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss,
Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss,

Financial liabilities at amortised cost: This includes investment manager fees pavable,
administration fees payable, professional fees payable, distributor fees payable, fees agent fees
payable, agent member company fees payable, manager support service provider fees pavable, due
to broker and other payables.

(iii}  Fair value measwrement principles

‘Fair Value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Series Trust has access at that date. The fair
value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk,

When available, the Series Trust measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in
an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as ‘active’ if transactions for the asset
or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an
ongoing basis. The Series Trust measures instruments quoted in an active market at a close price.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, the Series Trust uses valuation technigques that
maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The
chosen valuation technigue incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into
account in pricing a transaction.

Inputs to valuation techniques reasonably represent market expectations and measures of the risk-
return factors inherent in the financial instrument. The Series Trust calibrates valuation techniques
and tests them for validity using prices from observable current market transactions in the same
instrument or based on other available observable market data,
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2. Significant accounting palicies (continued)
(1 Financial instruments (contined)
(i) Fair value measwrement principles {coniinued)
Fair value hieravchy

[FRS 13 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritises the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level | measurements) and the lowest priority to
measurements involving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels
of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

«  Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Series Trust has the ability to access at the measurement date.

*  Level 2 inputs are inputs other than guoted prices included within Level | that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability (lowest among hierarchy).

The level in fair value hierarchy within a fair measurement in its entirety falls is based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

fivi  Amortised cost measurement

The *amortised cost® of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial
assel of financial liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus
or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference
between that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss
allowance,

vl fmpairment

The Series Trust recognises loss allowances for ECL on financial assets measured at amortised
cost on 12-month or lifetime basis,

Impairment on cash, subscriptions receivable and prepayments and other assets has been measured
on a 12-month expected loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The Series
Trust considers the credit risk is low or not material as a whole based on the external credit ratings
of the counterparties. On this basis, there was no impairment recorded by the Series Trust for the
year ended January 31, 2023,

i) Cifsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Statement of
Financial Position when, and only when, the Series Trust has a legally enforceable right 1o offset
the amounts and intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously,

As at January 31, 2023 and, all financial assets and liabilities are shown at their gross amounts as
none met the criteria for financial instrument offsetting, and therefore have not been offset in the
Statement of Financial Position.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis for net change in unrealized and realized gains
on investments in Selected Fund,
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2, Significant accounting policies (continued)

0 Financial fnstrvments (contined)
il Derecognition

The Series Trust derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Series Trust neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset. Any interest in transferred financial
assets that qualify for derecognition that is created or retained by the Series Trust is recognised as
a separate asset or liability in the Statement of Financial Position.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrving amount of the asset (and
the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised), and the consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The Series Trust derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expired,

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished
and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is
recognised in profit or loss,

{(ViiE) Specific insfruments
Cash

This includes cash deposited with banks, which is subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value and are held for meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or other

purposes.
Investments in Sel Fund

Investments in Selected Fund are classified imo the financial assets al fair value through profit or
loss category and are carried at their net asset value as reported by the Selected Fund's
administrators,

Where definitive values are not available, estimated values of the Series Trust's investments in
Selected Funds may be used. For the purposes of subscriptions and repurchases. no adjustments
are made to such values, notwithstanding any subsequent adjustment o the estimated valuation
provided in respect of the relevant invested fund.

As a result of the inherent uncertainty of waluation, the estimated carrying values for the
aforementioned securities may differ from the values that would have been used had a ready
market for the investments existed, and the differences could be material.

(gt fnterest income

Interest income and expense are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as it acerues,
using the original effective interest rate of the instrument calculated at the acquisition or origination
date.

fhl Net income/(loss) from financial instrments af FVTPL

Met incomelloss) from financial instruments at FYTPL are comprised of gains/(losses) arising from
disposals and changes in the fair value of investments.

(i} Fees and ather expenses

Fees and other expenses are recognised in profit or loss on an acerued basis.
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2. Significant accounting palicies (continued)
(f} Redeenable wnits

The Series Trust has units which are repurchased at the holders option. The Series Trust classifies its
puttable instruments as liabilities in accordance with 1AS 32 (Amendment) Financial instruments:
Presentation.

The amendment requires puttable financial instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability to
be classified as equity where certain strict criteria are met. Those eriteria include:

s The puttable instruments must entitle the holders to a pro-rata share of net assets:
+ The puttable instruments must be the most subordinated class and class features must be identical;

+ There must be no contractual obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset other than the
obligation on the issuer to repurchase; and

+ The total expected cash flows from the puttable instrument over its life must be based substantially
on the profit or loss of the issuer.

As these conditions were met, the Series Trust's units have been classified as equity at January 31,
2023,

Units can be put back to the Series Trust at any time for cash equal to a proportionate share of the
Series Trust's total equity,

Units are carried at the repurchased amount that is pavable at the Statement of Financial Position date if
the holders exercises the right to put the units back into the Series Trust,

Units are issued and repurchased at prices based on the Series Trust's total equity per unit at the time off
issue or repurchase. The Series Trust's equity per unit is calculated by dividing the total equity by the
total number of outstanding units,

X Iovestments in Selected Fund

The Series Trust has concluded that the unlisted open-ended investment funds in which it invests, but that it
does not consolidate, meet the definition of structured entities because:

- the voting rights in these funds are not dominant rights in deciding who controls them because the rights
relate to administrative tasks only:

- each fund’s activities are restricted by its prospectus; and
= the funds have narrow and well-defined objectives to provide investment opportunities to investors,

The table which shows the types of structured entities that the Series Trust does not consolidate but in
which it holds interest.

Type of structured entity  Nature and purpose .II['::::H el by S e
To manage assets on behall of third party evwestors and . . \
Investment funds generate fees fior the investment manager. These vehicles % of interest in the investee
are fimanced through the issues of wmits to mvestors funds
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3. Investments in Selected Fund {continued)

As of January 31, 2023 and 2022, the Selected Fund was denominated in United States dollars. Summarised
information reflecting the Series Trust's investments in Selected Fund as of January 31, 2023 and 2022 is
detailed below.

2023
Yaof
%o of interest
interest in the %o of
in the investee Serics
Fair investee Fund Trust’s  Redemption  Lock
StrategyUnderlyving Fund Lot Yalue fund LS Class  net assets permiticd L Level
Multi-sirategy:
MAN AHL ACTIVE
BALANCEDIUSD 45353930 456016.199 B8 100.00% 95,900 Draily nwa Levell
2022
Yaof
25 of inferest
interest in the o of
in the investee Series
Fair investee fumd Trust’s  Redemption  Lock
StratepyUnderlving Fund Cost Value fund USDCliss  net assets permitied -Up Level
Multi-strategy:
MAN AHL
ACTIVE
BALANCEDIUSD  34.7749WM 37481179 442% 42.17% 9R28% Dhaily na  Level2

4. Share capital

USD Class redeemable units were initially offered to investors during the initial offer period at the issue
price and will be issued on the initial closing day, subject o the minimum issue size.

From and including the initial closing day, redeemable units of each class of redeemable units will be
available for subscription by investors at a price equal to the Net Asset Value per unit of the applicable
class of redeemable units on each dealing day, subject to the minimum subscription. The MNet Asset Value
per unit for each class of redeemable units are calculated as at the relevant dealing day (or if that dealing
day is not also a valuation day the immediately preceding valuation day). The minimum subscription
amount is 1 unit and thereafter subscriptions may be made in 1 unit increments. The aggregate subseription
amounts are rounded down to the nearest whole unit. There are no subscription fee payable.

Under the terms of the Trust deed, unitholders are the only persons recognised by the Trustee as having any
right, title or interest in or to Redeemable units registered in their name and the Trustee will only recognise
such unitholders as absolute owner of the Redeemable units and will not be bound by any notice to the
contrary. The Trustee is not bound to take notice of or to see to the execution of any trust or, save as
provided under the Trust deed or save as by some cournt of competent jurisdiction orders, to recognise any
trust or equity or other interest affecting the title to any redeemable units.
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4. Share capital (continued)

The issue and fully paid capital comprises:

2023 2022
USD Class Units
Number of units
Units as at February 01, 2022 350,339 563,373
Units subscribed 320475 96,493
Units redeemed (173.273) (309.527)
Lnits as at January 31, 2023 506,541 350,339

Investors may subscribe for redeemable units of a class of redeemable units during the initial offer period
by sending a completed subscription agreement to the Administrator so as to be received by the
Administrator by no later than 7.00 p.m. (Tokvo time) on the last day of the initial offer period or by such
other times and/or days as the Manager may in its sole discretion determine.

Redeemable units are issued on the initial closing day or the relevant dealing day, as applicable.

Applicants for redeemable units should note that none of the Trustee, the Administrator, the Investment
Manager nor any of their duly authorised agents or delegates will accept responsibility for any loss caused
as a result of the illegibility or non-receipt of any application sent by electronic mail or other electronic
means as agreed in advance with the Administrator or for any loss caused in respect of any action taken as a
consequence of instructions believed in good faith to be signed by properly authorised persons,

The Investment Manager reserves the right to decline any application to subseribe for redeemable units in
whole or in part in its absolute discretion and redeemable units which have been issued on a dealing day but
for which a properly completed application and payment, as described above, is not timely received may be
compulsorily repurchased for nil consideration.

The Trustee or its delegates reserve the right to request such information as is necessary 1o verify the
identity of an applicant (or transferee) of redeemable units, the identity of their beneficial
owners‘controllers (where applicable) and the source of payment of subscription monies. Where the
circumstances permit, the Trustee or its delegates may be satisfied that full due diligence may not be
required where an exemption applies under the Anti-Money Laundering Regulations {2020 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands, as amended and revised from time to time or any other applicable law. However, detailed
verification information may be required prior to the payment of any proceeds from or any transfer of an
interest in redeemable units.

Investors may make a repurchase request to the Administrator on each repurchase day in respect of
redeemable units of a class of redeemable units for which subscription proceeds have been received by the
Administrator. In order to make a repurchase request, a unitholder must submit a completed repurchase
notice in the form or other electronic means as agreed in advance with the Administrator specifving the
number of redeemable units to be repurchased so as to be received by the Administrator by no later than
.00 pom. { Tokyo time) on the repurchase notice day immediately preceding the relevant repurchase day, or
by such other time and'or days as the Investment Manager may, in its sole discretion, determine (the
“Repurchase MNotice Deadline™),

The repurchase price per redeemable units of a class of redeemable units are calculated as the Net Asset
Value per redeemable unit of such class of redecmable units as at the relevant repurchase day (or if that
repurchase day is not also a valuation day then on the immediately preceding valuation day) (the
“Repurchase Price™).

Mo conversion of redeemable units is permitted in respect of the Series Trust.

109/210



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements

For the vear ended January 31, 2023
{Srated in United Siates dollars)

5. Fees and expenses
Administrator Fee

The Administrator receives an annual fee of 0.03% on the first USD 250,000,000 of the net assets, 0.07%
on the next USD 230,000,000 of the net assets and 0.06% on the net assets over USD 500,000,000, subject
1o a monthly minimum fee of USD 7,000, The fees earned by the Administrator during the year ended
Januwary 31, 2023, and outstanding fees payable to the Administrator as of January 31, 2023, have been
disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

Professional Fees

Professional fees include legal and audit fees. The fees paid during the year ended January 31, 2023, and
outstanding fiees payable to the Transfer Agent as of January 31, 2023, have been disclosed in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

6. Operating expenses

The Series Trust is responsible for all other normal operating expenses including audit and legal fees and
other charges including the expenses of acquiring and disposing of investments. These expenses are accrued
throughout the year for which the Series Trust receives the related benefit and are recorded as general
administrative expenses in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

7. Taxation

The Trust has received an undertaking from the Cayman [slands Government exempting it from all local
income, profits and capital gains taxes until December 2, 2063, No such taxes are levied in the Cayman
Islands at the present time,

The Series Trust could incur withholding taxes imposed by certain countries on investment income and
capital gains. Such income or gain would be recorded gross of withholding taxes in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Withholding taxes would be shown as a separate item in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Mo withholding tax expense was paid or payable during the vear ended January 31,
2023,

The Selected Fund may choose to invest in securities domiciled in countries other than Cayman Islands.
Many of these foreign countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes may be applicable to
non-residents including the Selected Fund, These capital gains taxes are required to be determined on a self-
assessment basis and, therefore, such taxes may not be deducted by the Selected Fund's broker on a
‘withhalding” basis.

In accordance with IAS 12 - Income Taxes, the Series Trust is required to recognize a tax liability when it
is probable that the tax laws of foreign countries require a tax liability to be assessed on the Series Trust’s
capital gains sourced from such foreign country, assuming the relevant taxing authorities have full
knowledge of all the facts and circomstances. The tax liability is then measured at the amount expected 1o
be paid to the relevant taxation authorities using the tax laws and rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. There is sometimes uncertainty about the way
enacted tax law is applied to offshore investment Series Trusts. This creates uncertainty about whether or
not a tax liability will ultimately be paid by the Series Trust, Therefore, when measuring any uncertain tax
liabilities management considers all of the relevant facts and circumstances available at the time which
could influence the likelihood of payment, including any formal or informal practices of the relevant tax
authorities.

As at January 31, 2023 and 2022, the Manager has determined that the Series Trust did not have a liability
to record for any unrecognized tax benefit in the accompanying financial statements. While this represents
the Manager's best estimate there remains a risk that the foreign tax authorities will attempt to collect taxes
on capital gains earned by the Series Trust. This could happen without giving prior warning, possibly on a
retrospective basis, and could result in a loss to the Series Trust,
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8. Related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. The Trustee, Fee
Agent, Manager, Investment Manager, Distributor, Manager Support Service Provider, and Agent Member
Company are all related parties to the Series Trust. All fees are paid from the assets of the Series Trust by
the administrator unless otherwise noted.

Trusiee Fees

The Trustee is entitled to receive a fixed annual fee of USD 10,000 per annum payvable annually. The
Trustee is also entitled 1o be reimbursed for all out-of-pocket expenses properly incurred by it in the
performance of its duties. The fees earned by the Trustee during the year ended January 31, 2023 and 2022,
and outstanding fees payable to the Trustee as of January 31, 2023 and 2022, have been disclosed in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

Trvestment Manager Fee

The Investment Manager is entitled to receive a fee of 0.15% per annum of the Net Asset Value accrued on
and calculated as at each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears. The fees eamned by the Investment
Manager during the year ended January 31, 2023 and 2022, and outstanding fees payable to the Investment
Manager as of January 31, 2023 and 2022, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

Fee Agent Fees

The Fee Agent is entitled o receive a fee of 0,12% per annum of the Net Asset Value (the “Operational
Costs Fees™) accrued on and caleulated as at each Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears. The
Operational Costs Fees are payvable by the Administrator on behalf of the Trustee. The fees earned by the
Fee Agent during the vear ended January 31, 2023 and 2022, and outstanding fees payvable to Fee Agent as
of January 31, 2023 and 2022, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the
Statement of Financial Position, respectively,

For the avoidance of doubt, the Fee Agent is not responsible for the payvment of the Investment Manager
fees, audit fees, formation expenses, distribution fees. administration fees, custody fees, any broker fees
relating 1o securily transactions, any legal and auditing costs that are not included in the audit fees and
expenses, annual fees payable in respect of the Series Trust or the Trust to government bodies and agencies,
any insurance costs, any costs relating to the Offering Memorandum and Appendix 34 and other similar
offering documents and the costs relating to the preparation, printing, translation and delivery of such
documents and any taxes relating to the purchase or disposal of securities, legal or compensation costs,
licensing, tax reporting, anti-money laundering compliance and monitoring, expenses related 10 the
termination or the liquidation of the Series Trust and any other extraordinary costs and expenses that would
not usually occur,

To the extent that the Operational Costs Fee is not sufficient to cover the Ordinary Costs, the Fee Agent is

liable for any outstanding amounts. Any amounts remaining following payment of the Ordinary Costs shall
be retained by the Fee Agent as its remuneration for acting as fee agent in respect of the Series Trust.
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8. Related party transactions (continued)
Marnager Fees

The Manager is entitled to receive a management fee of USD 5,000 per annum payvable monthly in arrears.
The Fee Agent is responsible for paying the Manager Fees. For the avoidance of doubt, the Manager may
decide in its sole discretion to reduce or waive the payment of the Manager fees. The fees earned by the
Manager during the year ended January 31, 2023 and 2022, and outstanding fees payable to the Manager as
of January 31, 2023 and 2022, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the
Statement of Financial Position, respectively,

Agent Member Company

The Agent Member Company will be entitled to receive a fee of 0.01% per annum of the Net Asset Value,
accrued on and calculated as at each Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears. The fees camed by the
Agent Member Company during the vear ended January 31, 2023 and 2022, and outstanding fees payable to
the Agent Member Company as of January 31, 2023 and 2022, have been disclosed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

Manager Suppart Service Provider

The Manager Support Service Provider will be entitled to receive, accrued on and calculated as at each
Valuation Day:

(i) if the Net Asset Value per Unit attributable to such class of units over the Calculation Period has
increased by less than 2% (using the MNet Asset Value per Unit after the reinvestment of gross
distributions), in respect of each Calculation Valuation Day, a fee of 0,05% per annum of the Net Asset
WValue attributable to such class of units; or

iy in all other cases, a fee of 0.20% per annum of the Net Asset Value attributable to such class of units, in
both cases accrued on an actual / 365 day count fraction and payable monthly in arrears. The Fee shall
be paid within a reasonable period from the end of the month for which payment is due. For the
avoidance of doubt, on each Valuation Day prior to the first Calculation Valuation Day, the Fee will be
calculated in accordance with limb (ii) above.

The fees earmned by the Manager Support Service Provider during the vear ended January 31, 2023 and
2022, and outstanding fees payable to the Manager Support Service Provider as of Januwary 31, 2023 and
2022, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial
Position, respectively,

Distribution Fees
The Distributor is entitled to receive accrued on and caleulated as at each valuation day:

(i) if the MNet Asset Value per unit attributable to such class of units over the calculation period has
increased by less than 2% in respect of cach calculation valuation day, a fee of 0.40% per annum of the
Net Asset Value attributable to such class of units; or

{ii} in all other cases, a fee of 0.75% per annum of the Net Assel Value attributable to such class of units,

The fees earmed by the Distributor during the year ended January 31, 2023 and 2022, and outstanding fees
payable to the Distributor as of January 31, 2023 and 2022, have been disclosed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively,
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks
9.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust

The Series Trust's investments portfolio comprises solely of the Selected Fund, The Series Trust's activities
expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The management of these risks is carried out by the Manager under
policies approved by the Trustee,

The Series Trust may be materially affected by the actions of another entity investing in the Selected Fund.
For example, if another unitholder of the Selected Fund repurchases some or all of its interests in the
Selected Fund, the Selected Fund and, in turn, the Series Trust, may experience higher pro rata operating
expenses, thereby producing lower returns. Similarly, the Selected Fund may become less diverse due to
repurchases from its other unitholders, resulting in increased portfolio risk. The Selected Fund may restrict
its investment activities or be precluded from investing in certain instruments due to regulatory restrictions
on certain of its direct or indirect investors or otherwise, which may have an adverse effect on the
performance of the Selected Fund, and, in tum, the Series Trust,

(A) Market Risk
{i} Crrrency Risk

All financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, cash and other assets and liabilities held by the Series
Trust are denominated in LS. Dollars, thus the Manager believes that the Series Trust has little currency
risk exposure, and is not subject to risk due to direct Muctuations in the prevailing levels of foreign currency
rates.

Investment in the Selected Fund in which the Series Trust invests may be denominated or quoted in
currencies other than the functional currency of the Series Trust. For this reason, changes in foreign
currency exchange rates can affect the value of the Series Trust’s portfolio.

i) fnterest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that prices of fixed income securities generally increase when interest rates
decline and decrease when interest rates increase. Prices of longer-term securities generally change more in
response to interest rate changes than prices of shorter-term securities. The Series Trust may lose money if
short-term or long-term interest rates rise sharply or otherwise change in a manner not anticipated by Series
Trust management. When interest rates fluctuate, the duration of the security may be used as an indication
of the degree of change in the debt price of the debt security. The bigger the security’s duration value, the
larger the change in the price of the debt security for a given movement in interest rates may be, Therefore,
the Met Asset Value may fluctuate.

The Series Trust does not have direct exposure to interest rate risk, however has indirect exposure to
interest rate through its investment in the Selected Fund.

The vield on the Selected Fund's (and indirecily, the Series Trust's) investments may be sensitive to
changes in prevailing interest rates, which may result in a mismatch between the Selected Fund's asset yield
and borrowing rates and consequently reduce or eliminate income derived from its investments.

If interest rates increase, prices of fixed income securities generally decline, reducing the value of the
Selected Fund's (and indirectly, the Series Trust's) investments. A major change in interest rates or a
significant decline in the market value of the Selected Fund’s (and indirectly, the Trust’s) investments, or
other market event, could cause the value of the investmenis of the Masier Fund’s investors (and indirectly
the unitholders’ investments in the Series Trust), or its vield, to decline.
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
2.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Truost (continued)
(A) Market Risk (continued)

{#i) Tmterest Rate Risk (cominued)

If interest rates change, the values of longer-duration debit securities are usually subject 1o greater change
than the values of shorter-duration debt securities.

The Series Trust may invest in fixed income securities through its indirect exposure to the investments of
the Selected Fund. Any changes to prevailing interest rates or changes in expectations of future rates may
result in an increase or decrease in the value of the securities held,

The majority of the Series Trust’s financial assets are non-interest bearing and, as a result, the Series Trust
is not subject to significant amounts of risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest
rates. The interest bearing financial instruments are represented mainly by cash amounting 1o
LISD 2,070,563 (2022: USD 521,008),

At January 31, 2023, if interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower with all other variables held
constant, the net assets would have been approximately USD 1,035 (2022 USD 261) higher or lower, as a
result of higher or lower interest income on deposits with the Fund’s Prime Brokers.

{fii} Market Price Risk

The market price of securities held by the Selected Fund may go up or down. sometimes rapidly or
unpredictably, Securities may decline in value due to factors affecting securities markets generally or
particular industries represented in the securities markets. The value of a security may decline due to
general market conditions which are not specifically related w0 a particular company, such as real or
perceived adverse economic conditions, supply and demand for particular securities or instruments, changes
in the general outlook for corporate earnings, changes in interest or currency rates or adverse investor
sentiment. They may also decling due to factors which affect a particular industry or industries, such as
labor shortages or increased production costs and competitive conditions within an industry. During a
general downtum in the securities markets, multiple asset classes may decline in value simultangously.
Equity securities generally have greater price volatility than fixed income securities.

An increase in market prices of the investment in the Selected Fund of 1% at January 31, 2023, would have

increased the Net Assets by USD 436,162 (2022: USD 374,812), A decrease of 1% would, all else being
equal, have an equal but opposite effect.
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
9.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust (continued)
(A) Market Risk (continued)

{Fif) Merker Price Risk feontined)

The following table summarizes the geographical concentration in the market price risk of the Selected
Fund at January 31, 2023 as a percentage of net assets of the Series Trust.

Countries of investment by the Series Trust Fair Value %o of Met Assets
Investments in securities

Australia 266,526 0.05%
Canada 900,471 0.17%
China (30,8761 (0.01%)
European Union 934,792 0.18%
France 310,468,966 50.87%
Ciermany (1,058.731) (0.20%0)
Hong Kong (306,977 (0.06%)
Italy 68,244 0.01%
Japan 16,386 0,000
Metherlands (18,543) 0.00%%
Singapore (16,921} 0.00%
South Africa 102,773 0.02%
South Korea 434,768 0.08%
Sweden (97.464) (0.02%:)
Switzerland 326,369 0.06%
Taiwan 81,023 0,02%
United Kingdom 524,008 0.10%
United States 164,823,026 31.78%
Total Investments in securities 477,417,840 92.05%

The following table summarizes the geographical concentration in the market price risk of the Selected
Fund at January 31, 2022 as a percentage of net assets of the Series Trust.

Countries of investment by the Series Trust Fair Value %o of Net Assets
Investments in securities

Awustralia (1,252,098) (0.15%)
Canada 205,662 0.02%
China (267,758) (0.03%)
European Union (197,902) (0.029%)
France 349,205 458 41.22%
Ciermany (2,804,163) (0.33%)
Hong Kong (225,752) (0.03%)
Italy (963,102) (0.11%)
Japan (2,191,387) (0.26%)
Netherlands (325,815) (0.04%%)
Singapore (27.935) (0.00%)
South Africa 61,231 0.01%
South Korea {1,389.266) (0. 16%)
Sweden (309.654) (0.04%)
Switzerland (635,176) (0.07%)
Taiwan (149.076) (0.02%)
United Kingdom (493,529) (0.06%)
United States 281,414,733 33.21%
Total Investments in securities 619,744,471 73.14%
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%, Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
2.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust (continued)
(B) Credit Risk

Changes in an issuer’s credit rating or the market's perception of an issuer’s creditworthiness may affect the
vilue of the Series Trust’s investments in the Selected Fund. The degree of credit risk depends on both the
financial condition of the issuer and the terms of the obligation.

Due to its investment in the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is exposed to the credit risk associated with debt
instruments that may be held by the Selected Fund. All transactions in listed securities held by the Selected
Fund are settled/paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of default is considered minimal,
as delivery of securities sold is only made once the broker has received payment. Payment is made on a
purchase once the securities have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if either party fails to meet
their obligation,

The Investment Manager monitors the Series Trust’s credit position on an on-going basis.

The maximum exposure to credit risk of all financial assets of the Series Trust as of January 31, 2023 and
2022 is the carrying amounts as shown on the Statement of Financial Position. No collateral or other credit
enhancements are held by the Series Trust, None of these assets are impaired or past due.

The clearing and depository operations for the Selected Fund's security transactions are mainly
concentrated with their custodian. The Series Trust minimizes its exposure to eredit risk by conducting
transactions with an established and reputable broker, which is Mitsubishi UF) Investor Services Banking
{Luxembourg) S.A. and as at January 31, 2023 and 2022, credit rating was A (2022: A) as published by
S&P. At January 31, 2023 and 2022, substantially all cash is placed at this broker.

The carrying amounts of financial assets best represent the maximum credit risk exposure at the reporting
date. This also relates 1o financial assets carried at amortized cost, as they have a shor-term to maturity,

As at January 31, 2023 and 2022, the Series Trust’s financial assets exposed 1o credit risk amounted to the
following:

January 31, 2023 January 31, 2022

Investments in Selected Fund 45,616,199 37481179
Cash 2070563 521,008
[Due from broker - 300,000
Prepavments and other assets 51,024 79,215
UsD 47737786 USD 38.381.402
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%, Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

9.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust (continued)

(C) Liguidity Risk
Liquidity risk exists when particular invesiments are difficult to purchase or sell. The Series Trust’s
investments in illiquid securities may reduce the returns of the Series Trust because it may be unable to sell
the illiquid securities at an advantageous time or price.
The table below analyzes the Series Trust’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping based on the

remaining period at the Statement of Financial Position date 1o the contractual maturity date. The amounts
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

3 months 3 months Total

As at January 31, 2023 or less to | year
Administration fees payable 30,329 A 30,329
Distributor fees payable 25,505 - 25,305
Fee Agent fiees payable 4,924 - 4924
Agent Member Company fees payable 410 - 410
Manager Support Service Provider fees payable 5,953 - 5,953
Investment Manager fees pavable 6,149 - 6,149
Redemption payable 14,159 - 14,159
Trustee fees payable 5,000 - 5,000
Other pavables TT.688 - 77,688
170,117 - 170,117
3 months 3 months Total

As at January 31, 2022 or less to | year
Administration fees payable 7,890 - 7,890
Professional fees payable 18,6006 - 18,606
Distributor fees payable 13,879 - 13,879
Fee Agent fees payable 4,167 - 4,167
Agent Member Company fees payable 347 - 347
Manager Support Service Provider fees payable 1.736 - 1.736
Investment Manager fees payable 5,203 - 5203
Redemption payable 136,062 - 136,062
Trustee fees pavable 2,500 - 2,500
Other payables 52,600 - 52,600
242,990 - 242,990

The Manager monitors the Series Trust’s liquidity position on an on-going basis, and does not invest in
illiquid assets.
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9. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
2.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust (continued)
{C) Liguidity Risk (continued)

Due 1o its investment in the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is exposed to the liguidity risk associated with
unitholder repurchases in accordance with the terms in the Selected Fund's Prospectus. The Series Trust is
managed to include liquid investmenis sufficient to meet nommal liquidity needs although substantial
repurchases of units in the Series Trust could require the Selected Fund to liquidate its investments more
rapidly than otherwise desirable in order to raise cash for the repurchases. These factors could adversely
affect the value of the units repurchased and the valuation of the units that remain outstanding and the
liquidity of the Series Trust’s remaining assets if more liquid assets have been sold to meet the repurchases.

There were no repurchase fees applied in respect to the Selected Fund for the vear ended January 31, 2023
and 2022,

(D) Risk Management

The Series Trust’s Investment Managet's team is supported by certain risk management systems and
professionals, which provide regular reporting on the Selected Fund and quantitative risk measures.

The capital of the Series Trust is represented by the net assets attributable to the holders of units.

The amount of net assets attributable to the holders of units can change significantly on a daily basis as the
Series Trust is subject to daily subscriptions and repurchases at the discretion of the unitholder, The Series
Trust’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for the unitholder and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a
strong capital base to support the development of the investment activities of the Series Trust. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Series Trust's policy is to perform the following:

+  Monitor the level of daily subscriptions and repurchases relative to the liquid assets and adjust the
amount of distributions the Series Trust pays to the holders of units.

«  Repurchase and issue new units in accordance with the constitutional documents of the Series Trust,
The Manager monitors capital on the basis of the value of net assets attributable to the holders of units.
9.2 Additional Series Trust"s Risks
(A) Custody Risk
Meither the Trustee nor the Manager controls the custodianship of the Series Trust’s investments in the
Selected Fund. The custodian or other banks or brokerage firms selected 1o act as custodians may become
insolvent, causing the Series Trust to lose all or a portion of the funds or securities held by those custodians.
{B) Risk of Indemnification
The Trusiee, the Manager, the Administrator, the Investment Manager and other parties, and each of their
respective agents, principals, officers, employees, and affiliates are entitled to be indemnified out of the

assets of the Series Trust under certain circumstances which may result in a decrease in Net Asset Value per
unit.
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%, Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
9.2 Additional Series Trust™s Risks (continued)
(C) Settlement Risk

Settlement and clearance procedures in certain foreign markets differ significantly from those in the United
States, the European Union and Japan. Foreign settlement and clearance procedures and trade regulations
also may involve certain risks (such as delays in payment for or delivery of securities) not typically
associated with the settlement of United States investments. At times, settlements in certain foreign
countries have not kept pace with the number of securities transactions. These problems may make it
difficult for the Selected Fund and ultimately, the Manager to carry out transactions for the account of the
Series Trust. If the Manager cannot settle or is delayed in settling a purchase of securities, it may miss
attractive investment opportunities and certain of the Series Trust's assets may be uninvested with no return
earned thereon for some period.

If the Selected Fund and ultimately, the Manager cannot settle or is delayed in settling a sale of securities,
the Series Trust may lose money if the value of the underlying security then declines or, if it has contracted
to sell the security to another party: the Series Trust could be liable for any losses incurred.

(D) Derivatives

The Series Trust’s assets are not used to directly invest in derivatives. The series trust may be exposed to
risks associated with investing in derivatives through its investment in the Selected Fund, These risks
inchude;

+  Credit Risk — the risk that the counterparty (the party on the other side of the transaction) on a
derivative transaction will be unable to honor its financial obligation to the Series Trust.

*  Leverage Risk — the risk associated with certain types of investments or trading strategies that
relatively small market movements may result in large changes in the value of an investment, Certain
investments or trading strategies that involve leverage can result in losses that greatly exceed the
amount originally invested.

*  Liquidity Risk — the risk that certain securities may be difficult or impossible to sell at the time that
the seller would like or at the price that the seller believes the security is currently worth,

As of January 31, 2023 and 2022, there were no Series Trust derivative assets and derivative liabilities
subject to netting arrangements and similar arrangements.

{E} Counterparty and Broker Risk

The financial institutions and counterparties, including banks and brokerage firm with which the Manager
or its delegate trades or invests for the account of the Series Trust, may encounter financial difficulties and
default on their respective obligations owed in respect of the Series Trust. Any such default could result in
material losses to the Series Trust. In addition, the Manager may pledge collateral for the account of the
Series Trust o the counterparties in order to secure certain transactions. Wo collateral was pledged by the
Manager during the year ended January 31, 2023 and 2022,

The Series Trust has not offset any financial assets or financial liabilities in the Statement of Financial
Position,
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%, Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
9.2 Additional Series Trust™s Risks (continued)
(Fy Generated Income and Distributions

There is no guarantee that there will be any generated income. Distributions (if any) may be paid in whole
or in part out of investment principal attributable to the units or, alternatively, the Generated Income may be
zero. A distribution can in effect result in a returm of an investor’s initial capital or capital gains thereby
eroding that capital to the extent the distribution exceeds available income. In consequence of this
possibility. investors seeking capital preservation may not achieve this given probable detericration in the
value of the Series Trust's investments caused by declining asset values and a return of capital to investors
by way of distribution. If the Series Trust is not profitable, the Repurchase Price a unitholder receives back
in respect of a repurchase of units may be less than the unitholder’s initial investment,

The Generated Income partially relies on the receipt of distributions paid by the Selected Fund. Should the
Selected Fund fail to pay any distributions or pay less than anticipated, including due to a rise in the non-
treaty tax rate applicable to the Series Trust, then the Series Trust will gain correspondingly less than
investors may previously have expected. Furthermore, if the interest rate at which the distributions received
accrue falls during the yearly period, this may also lead to the Generated Income being lower than expected.

The selected fund did not pay any distributions during the vear.
{G) No Interest in the Selected Fund

The return on the units depends, amongst other things, on the performance of the Selected Fund. An
investment in units does not give a unitholder a direct interest in the Selected Fund.

(H) Early Termination of the Series Trust

Although the Final Repurchase Day of the Series Trust is scheduled for January 31, 2025, the Final
Repurchase Day will be brought forward should a Compulsory Repurchase Event occur.

9.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation

The Series Trust applies IFRS 13 Fair value measurement and utilizes the last traded market price for its
fair valuation inputs for both financial assets and liabilities,

An active market is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with suificiemt
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

120/210



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FOREIGN CURRENCY DENOMINATED MAN AHL SMART LEVERAGE STRATEGY FUND
Motes to the Financial Statements

For the vear ended January 31, 2023
{Srated in United Siates dollars)

%, Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
2.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation (continued)

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market is determined by
using valuation techniques. The Series Trust uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are
based on market conditions existing at each period end date. Valuation techniques used for non-
standardized financial instruments such as options, currency swaps and other over-the-counter derivatives,
include the use of comparable recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same, discounted cash Now analysis, option pricing models and other valuation techniques
commonly used by market participants making the maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as
possible on entity-specific inputs.

For instruments for which there is no active market, the Series Trust may use internally developed models,
which are usually based on valuation methods and techniques generally recognized as standard within the
industry, Some of the inputs to these models may not be market observable and are therefore estimated
based on assumptions, The output of a model is always an estimate or approximation of a value that cannot
be determined with certainty, and valuation techniques employed may not fully reflect all factors relevant to
the positions the Series Trust holds, Valuations are therefore adjusted, where appropriate. o allow for
additional factors including model risk, liquidity risk and counterparty risk.

The Series Trust classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance
of the inputs used in making the measurements,

The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

*  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

*  Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly: and

s Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety is
determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its
entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its
entirety. If a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on
unobservable inputs, that measurement is a Level 3 measurement, Assessing the significance of a particular
input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment. considering factors specific to the
asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes “abservable’ requires significant judgment by the Administrator,
under advisement of the Manager. The Administrator, under advisement of the Manager. considers
observable data to be that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and
verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant
market.
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%, Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
9.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation (continued)

The following is a summary of the fair valuations according to the inputs used as of January 31, 2023 and
2022 in valuing the Series Trust’s financial assets:

{Unad justed)

Quoted Prices in Significant

Active Markets Oiher Significant
Financial Assets at Fair for ldentical Ohservahble Unobservable Fair Value at
Value Through Profit Investments Inputs Inputs January 31,
or Loss {Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3) 2023
Investment in the
Selected Fund
MAN AHL Active
Balanced | {USIY Class) 5 = 5 4561619 5 = 5 43616, 199
Financial assets, at fair
value through profit or
loss % - 8 45,616,199 8 - 5 45,616,199

{Unadjusted)

Ouoted Prices in Significant

Active Markets Other Significant
Financial Assets at Fair for Identical Obhservahle Unobservable Fair Value at
Value Through Profit Investments Inputs Inputs January 31,
or Loss (Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3) 2022
Investment in the
sSelected Fund
MAN AHL Active
Balameed 1 {USD Class) < - $  3T7481.1M % - % 37.481.179
Finaneial assets, at Fair
vitlue through profit or
lass s - 5 37451179 5 - 5 37,481,179

During the year ended January 31, 2023 and 2022, there were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3.
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9.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation (continued)

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on
quoted market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are
classified within Level 2. These include over-the-counter derivatives and debt securities. As Level 2
investments include positions that are not traded in active markets and/or are subject to transfer restrictions,
valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity and/or non-transferability, which are generally based on
available market information,

For purposes of calculating the NAV of the Selected Fund, fixed income securities for which market quotes
are readily available are normally valued on the basis of quotes obtained from established market makers or
pricing services and are classified as Level 2 investments in the financial statements of the Selected Fund.
Forward contracts are valued vsing observable inputs which can generally be corroborated by market data
and are therefore classified as Level 2 investments in the financial statements of the Selected Fund. As of
January 31, 2023 and 2022 all financial assets and liabilities were classified as Level 2 investments,

Financial asscts and liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss

(i) Al January 31, 2023 and 2022, cash and all other assets and liabilities (including investments in
Selected Fund, subscription receivable, prepaid trustee fees, prepayments and other assets and payables
for, investment manager fees, manager support service provider fee, fee agent fees, distribution fees,
transfer agent fees, administrator fees, custody fees, professional fiees and agent member company fees
and other and due to broker) are deemed shori-term financial assets and liabilities whose carrying
amounts approximate fair value because of their short-term nature.

2.4 Investments in unconsolidated structured entities

As of January 31, 2023 the Selected Fund's net asset value was USD 518,597,024, As of January 31, 2023
the Selected Fund held total investments of USD 474,106,981 comprising of fixed income securities
{Sovereign Bonds and Term Deposits) of USD 471,226,874, Futures contract assets of USD 10,881,329 and
liabilities of USD 4690364 and forward contract assets of USD 328,185,089 and liabilities of USD
331,405 04%,

The valuation of investments in unconsolidated structured entities represents the amount the Series Trust
would expect to receive if it were to liquidated or redeem its investments subject to the underlying fund’s
liquidity or redemption restrictions and costs,

The rights attached to the Series Trust's holding in the Selected Fund is similar to those of other investors.
Subscriptions into the Selected Fund are governed by the rights stipulated in their offering documents. The
Series Trust has the ability to liquidate or redeem its investments periodically in accordance with the
provisions of the provisions of the Selected Fund's offering memorandum. Refer to Note 1 for information
regarding the investment objectives of the Selected Fund.

10. Subsequent events

Trustee has evaluated the events and transactions that have occurred through June 02, 2023, the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

On March 19, 2023, UBS Group AG (“UBS") agreed to acquire Credit Suisse Group AG (“Credit Suisse™)
following imervention by the Swiss Federal Department of Finance, the Swiss National Bank and the Swiss
Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

The Series Trust has no exposure related to investments in financial assets with Credit Suisse International,

As of June 02, 2023, the Manager and the Trustee have not received any formal communication regarding
the transition of roles, responsibilities, or obligations from Credit Suisse to UBS, Until the consummation of
the transaction, the Manager and the Trustee understand that Credit Suisse will continue to conduct its
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10. Subsequent events (continued)

operations in the ordinary course, The Manager and the Trustee expect the acquisition will take time 1o
close and as a result, the full impact on the financial performance and the operations of the Series Trust will
depend on future developments which are uncertain and cannot be predicted at this time.

Effective February 1, 2023 through June 02, 2023, there were redemptions of USD 3,470,614,

Trustee noted no iwems requiring adjustment or additional disclosure in the financial statements.
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2022 12 31

214,449,495 29,973,606
307,046,971 42,915,955
221,936 31,020
15,124 2,114
176,346 24,648
521,909,872 72,947,343
283,706 39,654
11,952,478 1,670,598
23,465,390 3,279,758
304,835 42,607
655,557 91,627
36,661,966 5,124,243
485,247,906 67,823,100
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920,754,720
40,024,868
(196,188, 145)

(279,343,537)

485,247,906
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128,693,887
5,594,276
(27,421,217)

(39,043, 846)
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(273,723,010) (38,258, 265)
(273,723,010) (38,258, 265)
4,441,715 620,819
1,787,028 249,773
102,056 14,264
(8,010) (1,120)
15,716 2,197

2,257 315
175,995 24,599
6,516,757 910,847
896,230 125,266
5,620,527 785,581

(279,343,537) (39,043, 846)

128/210



EDINETOOOO

DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)

2022 12 31

(279,343,537)

1,790,000

57,744,044

32,463,836
(14,736)
170,569

10,451,247

(293,178)

(266,440)
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(39,043,846)

250,188

8,070,885

4,537,470
(2,060)
23,840

1,460,771

(40,977)

(37,240)

(177,298,195)

(24,780, 969)

40,024,868
(196,188, 145)

5,594,276
(27,421,217)

(156,163,277)

(21,826,941)

(333,461,472)

547,627,261

(46,607,910)

76,541,862

214,165,789

29,933,952

214,449,495
(283,706)

29,973,606
(39,654)

214,165,789

29,933,952
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2022 12 31
a

97 HSCEI Index Futures January 2023 34,504 0.00
38 Hang Seng Index Futures January 2023 43,345 0.01
77,849 0.01
19 SGX Nifty 50 Index Futures January 2023 4,249 0.00
413 FTSE China A50 Index Futures January 2023 43,832 0.01
48,081 0.01
5 United States 2 Years Treasury Note CBT Futures March 2023 938 0.00
126,868 0.02
50,000,000 French Discount Treasury Bill 0% 09/08/2023 52,558,327 10.83
50,000,000 French Discount Treasury Bill 0% 12/07/2023 52,748,297 10.87
50,000,000 French Discount Treasury Bill 0% 14/06/2023 52,877,702 10.90
50,000,000 French Discount Treasury Bill 0% 19/04/2023 53,069,807 10.94
50,000,000 French Discount Treasury Bill 0% 22/02/2023 53,255,241 10.97
40,000,000 French Discount Treasury Bill 0% 22/03/2023 42,537,597 8.77
307,046,971 63.28
307,046,971 63.28
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2022 12 31
“
2,930,000 3,123,377 2023 1 12 1 6,542 0.00
1,090 1,160 2023 1 31 1 6 0.00
4,126,894 3,355,995 2023 1 12 2 88,520 0.02

95,068 0.02

307,268,907 63.32
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2022 12 31
296 Australian 10 Years Bond Futures March 2023 (1,219,005) (0.25)
8 Australian 3 Years Bond Futures March 2023 (6,514) (0.00)
95 SPI 200 Index Futures March 2023 (245,481) (0.05)
(1,471,000) (0.30)
144 Canadian 10 Years Bond Futures March 2023 (316,654) (0.07)
110 S&P/TSX 60 Index Futures March 2023 (646,808) (0.13)
(963,462) (0.20)
119 CAC 40 10 Euro Index Futures January 2023 (323,741) (0.07)
26 DAX Index Future March 2023 (368,228) (0.08)
8 EURO BOBL Futures March 2023 (36,286) (0.01)
221 EURO BTP Futures March 2023 (1,984,218) (0.41)
256 EURO BUND Futures March 2023 (2,277,537) (0.47)
17 EURO BUXL 30 Years Bond Futures March 2023 (451,447) (0.09)
159 EURO OAT Futures March 2023 (1,488,131) (0.31)
358 EURO Stoxx 50 Index Futures March 2023 (562,319) (0.11)
25 Stoxx Euro ESG Index Futures March 2023 (19,563) (0.00)
150 Swiss Market Index Futures March 2023 (565,488) (0.12)
(7,753,217) (1.60)
69 FTSE/MIB Index Futures March 2023 (315,922) (0.07)
43 Japan OSE 10 Years Bond March 2023 (857,315) (0.18)
181 TOPIX Index Futures March 2023 (709,983) (0.14)
(1,567,298) (0.32)
56 Amsterdam Index Futures January 2023 (422,309) (0.09)
70 FTSE Taiwan Index Futures January 2023 (19,307) (0.01)
132 MSCI Singapore Index Futures January 2023 (6,740) (0.00)
160 Nikkei 225 (SGX) Index Futures March 2023 (1,021,764) (0.21)
(1,047,811) (0.22)
47 FTSE/JSE Top 40 Index Futures March 2023 (63,313) (0.01)
136 Korea 10 Years Bond Futures March 2023 (363,598) (0.08)
5 Korea 3 Years Bond Futures March 2023 (3,179) (0.00)
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128 KOSPI2 Index Futures March 2023 (362,491) (0.07)
(729,268) (0.15)

15 OMXS30 ESG Index Futures January 2023 (13,683) (0.00)
552 OMXS30 Index Futures January 2023 (399,045) (0.08)
(412,728) (0.08)

248 FTSE 100 Index Futures March 2023 (10,202) (0.00)
163 Long Gilt Futures March 2023 (1,269,192) (0.26)
(1,279,394) (0.26)

4 E-mini S&P 500 ESG Index Futures March 2023 (17,355) (0.00)
59 Nasdaq 100 E-mini Index Futures March 2023 (773,242) (0.16)
146 S&P500 E-mini Index Futures March 2023 (831,537) (0.17)
814 United States 10 Years Treasury Note CBT Futures March 2023 (600,563) (0.13)
16 United States 5 Years Treasury Note CBT Futures March 2023 (2,156) (0.00)
222 United States Long Bond CBT Futures March 2023 (395,977) (0.08)
264 United States Ultra Bond CBT Futures March 2023 (780,573) (0.16)
(3,401,403) (0.70)

(19,750,866) (4.07)
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2022 12 31
1,131 1,371 2023 1 31 1 ©) (0.00)
59,021,868,614 449,509,939 2023 1 31 1 (250,824) (0.05)
312,593,883 295,869,840 2023 1 12 1 (3,463,691) 0.71)
(3.714,524) (0.76)
(23,465,390) (4.83)
307,268,907 63.32
(23,465,390) (4.83)
201,444,389 41.51
485,247,906 100.00
a
b
58.83
a 0.02
b 0.02
41.13
100.00

UCITS 8.2 B
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2023
44,866,691 6,271,017,401
182,656 25,529,829
44,684,036 6,245,487,712
471,228
94.82 13,253
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1103 227
852
10
10
15
21
50

33.2
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2023 735,000 10,273

10
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2023

1,677,686,470
8,495,890
13 74,283,838
78,855,328,606
907,045,301
25 157,640,379,167
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2021 2021 12 31 2022
2022 12 31
22
38 59 131

23 103

2023 31
139.77
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2022 2021
usD usD
14,396 2,012 1,541 215
14,396 2,012 1,541 215
14,396 2,012 1,541 215
205,000 28,653 210,000 29,352
58 8 4 1
219,454 30,673 211,545 29,568
(112,703) (15,752)  (111,758) (15,620)
106,751 14,921 99,787 13,947
106,751 14,921 99,787 13,947
106,751 14,921 99,787 13,947
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2022 12 31

2022 2021

usb usD
9 1,984,033 277,308 1,759,688 245,952
10 205,864 28,774 210,863 29,472
2,189,897 306,082 1,970,551 275,424
10 336,526 47,036 223,931 31,299
336,526 47,036 223,931 31,299
11 735,000 102,731 735,000 102,731
1,118,371 156,315 1,011,620 141,394
1,853,371 259,046 1,746,620 244,125
2,189,897 306,082 1,970,551 275,424

2023 15
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2022 12 31
usb usb usb
2022
735,000 102,731 1,011,620 141,394 1,746,620 244,125
106,751 14,921 106,751 14,921
12 31 735,000 102,731 1,118,371 156,315 1,853,371 259,046
2021

735,000 102,731 911,833 127,447 1,646,833 230,178
99,787 13,947 99,787 13,947
12 31 735,000 102,731 1,011,620 141,394 1,746,620 244,125
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2022 12 31
2022 2021

usD usD
106,751 14,921 99,787 13,947
4 (14,396) (2,012) (1,541) (215)
92,355 12,908 98,246 13,732
4,999 699 10,107 1,413
4,999 699 10,107 1,413
112,595 15,737 5,998 838
112,595 15,737 5,998 838
4 14,396 2,012 1,541 215
224,345 31,357 115,892 16,198
224,345 31,357 115,892 16,198
9 1,759,688 245,952 1,643,796 229,753
1,984,033 277,308 1,759,688 245,952
9 1,984,033 277,308 1,759,688 245,952

1,984,033 277,308 1,759,688 245,952
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KYl 1104
309 c/o Maples
Corporate Services Limited, P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman
Islands
IFRS
IFRS 1AS
1ASB
IFRS
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UBS 2023 19
2023 12
2023 12 UBS
2022 12 31 12
12
12
2022
usb
usb
usb
usb
ECL
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IFRS

ECL
ECL
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1ASB IFRS

15
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2022 2021
14,396 1,541
14,396 1,541
2022 2021

205,000 210,000
205,000 210,000
2022 2021

(50) €))
(6,478) (5,272)
(106,175) (106, 485)
(112,703) (111,758)

2039 10 10
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5,000 2021 5,000 2022 12 31
(o
CS
usS
us
NB  MYAM
UK
WiL
(o}
AMP REIT
J REIT

CAT
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BSMD
PIMCO

J REIT
AHL
SBI  PICTET

us

REIT a

AMP
HOLT

2022

2022 2021

1,984,033 1,759,688
1,984,033 1,759,688
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2022 2021

205,864 210,863

205,864 210,863

2022 2021

336,526 223,931

336,526 223,931
2022 2021

1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31
205,864 205,864 210,863 210,863
205,864 205,864 210,863 210,863
336,526 336,526 223,931 223,931
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
1,071,526 1,071,526 958,931 958,931

2022 12 31 2021 12 31
205,000 205,000 210,000 210,000
205,000 205,000 210,000 210,000

2022 2021
106,175 106,485
106,175 106,485
2022 12 31
2023 12
UBS
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17

2023 15
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Coract? Suless Magamant {08 may) Limeeo
Frrarsial riatamaoks o M e il 37 Dacaeber 2003

Statemeant of Income for the year ended 31 Dacembar 2022

UsD “‘:’;’ 2022 2021
Intecastincome ... . A3 151

- af which tateres! income from nstrumenis at

amartisad cost 14,396 1,51
Total interest income L] 14,396 1,641
Servee feaimesee | 5 D08.000 210,000
Ohher reveroes -
Total revenues 218,454 211,545

Gereral, adminstalve and other cpemating expenses 8 (1127080 {171,768

Operating profit before allowance and taxation 106,751 98,737
Profit bafore tax 106,751 99,787
ncome tax eepengs ¥ - -
Profit after fax 106,751 98,787

The accompanying noles fomm an integral part of thess finandal slalements.
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Crogit Susige Maagemant {Caemany) Limind
Fraancal statevments o the paar enged 31 Decemnber 2023

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2022

[ 2022 2021
usn o Mode

Assels

Cash and due from banks ] 1,984,033 1,755 6688
Other assels 0 205,864 210,863
Total assets 2,189,897 1,970,551
Liabilities

Oither kabilites 10 336,576 273,931
Total Rabilities 336,526 223,931
Shareholders' equity i
Share capital 11 735,000 735,000
Retained eamngs 1,11&?‘?‘1 __1___{:11,&99_
Total shareholders’ equity T 1.8533n 1,746,620
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 2,188,897 1,970,551

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directoss on 15 June 2023

]
]
] Mur%f
)
)

Nicolos PoP
mﬂl‘”'" .

lin'lilld

credit

The accompanying notes farm an integral part of thess financial statements.
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Chivi S Mlwragemson ! {Cnpmen) Lieitod
Firaecin! sistomonts i S Joar anded 3 ¥ Lol 07T

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year anded 31 December 2022

Share ceplal Relaned Toml
uso camings
e e
Balance at 1 Janvary 735000 1,011,620 1,746,620
Profit fee the year - 108,761 166,751
Balanca at 31 Decembar 735,000 1.118,371 1,853,371
M1 G e i i e i e il e e i e e T S i e R i e i T
Balance at 1 January 735,000 911,833 1,646,833
Proftlorthayesr = s 078
Balance at 31 December 735000 1,011,620 1,745,820

The accompanying noles foom an learal part of these firancial statamants,
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Gt Soirer Mpmgrmant {Caymmn) Limded
Fiarcial stalwivenks for D s oricfod 57 ool 2007

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2022

usp ‘m 2022 2021
Cash flows from cperaling activilies
Profit betone tax for the period 106,74 95,787

Adjustmenls lo reconcila nel profit o nel cash
generaled from operating aclivities

Nen-cash items included in net profit belore lax
and other adjusiments:

Interest Income A {14, 368) {1,641}
BB barsraie ok setrlin MhRe el A L S
changes in operating assats and liabilitias 82,355 98,248
[Netdecrease in operating assets: ____________
Othar assets 4,502 10,107
Net decrease in operating assets 4,999 10,197
MNet increase in operaling habilities:

Ofher labilfles T TTTTTTTTT feEss B,0ad
Net increase in operating fabilitles: 1126% = 6998
Inezresl income recewed 4 14,296 1541
Net cash generated from operating activity 254,345 115,852
Net increase in cash and cash equivalenis 224,345 115,892
Cash and cash squivalants 2l the beginning of year g 1,758 588 1,643,796
Cash and cash equivalents al the end of year 1,984,033 1,759,688
Cash and due from banks 9 1.884,0 1,768,538
Cash and cash equivalents al the end of year 1,984,033 1,759,688

The szzoenpanying notes formn an irlegral pact of these linancky slabements.

-1
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el Sulsee blaragament (Coymey) Lot
Moot t Firancial salemonis Jor T ok red 31 osrnter FU0T

MNotes to the financial statements

1. Principal acthities

Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (ihe “Company®) ks incerporated In the Cayman slands
with Emiled lebitty. The Company's princizal activilies are the creation of frusts and the administration
and management of assals m tusls, The Cempany's registered office & ofo Mapes Corporale
Sendces Limited, 0. Box 308 | Ugland House, Grand Cayman #1-1 104, Cayman (2ands.

2. Significant Accounting Paolicies

(a) Statement of compliance

These [nance! slalements have been prepared in accordance wilh al eppicable Intemalional
Financig! Reporfing Stendards [IFRSs"), which colacie lerm indudes al applicable individual
Infsmational Financial Reporiing Standards, Internalionsl Accounling Stendards (lASs™) and
Interprelations issued by Inleratonal Accountng Slandards Beand [IASET). A summery of the
sinificant accounting poficies adopied by the Company is set cut below.

{b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The messurement basig used in the preparafion of lhe financal slzbemenis (s the histoncel cost basiz,

The preparation of financial statements in conformiy with IFRSs requines managsment 10 make
Judoemeants, estimates and assumptions that afact the application of policles and reported amounts
of assets, kabilities, income and expenses. The estimabes and asscciates assunptions are based on
histoncal exsedenc: and varous other factors thal are belewed 10 be reasonable under the
clrcumstarces, The results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carying values of
assets and liebililies that are nol readily apparent from other sources, Achual resulls may ditfer from
these eslimates.

The: estimates and wnderying assumplions are revieved an an ongeng basis, Revisions lo seeounting
aslimates ans recogtead in tha period B which the eztimale (s reizad I the revision affects enly that
paricd, or in the perod of the ravision and fulure parods o the revision affects bath current and future
pericds.

Going Concern

On 19 Mareh 2023, Cradit Suisse Group AG and LUBES Group AG entared inte an agreement
plan of merger (Mthe mergar), which was complated en 12 June 2023, From 12 Juns 2093, the
Company is a consolidated subsidiary of UBS Group AG, and as such the futuss oparations and
trancial perfarmance of the Company may ba impacied as a rasult of the merger and the impact is
yet to be determinzd. This matier indicates that a materal uncertainty edsts that may cast significant
doubt on the Company's obiily 1o confinwe as 2 going concem, The Direciors have considersd the
fulure Syuidly and cash Tiows of the Corrpary in the coming twelve months from 31 December 2002
{"Ihe nead bwabee months™) and conclded that the Company is expectad o have sufficient working
capilal to meat iis fnandal obligelions as and when they fal due to conlinue eperating the Company
during the: nexl tweke menths, Accordingly, the Direclors consider thal il is appropriate to stil prepare
{he 052 finsncil slatements an & going concem basis.
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et Suacoir Managoran! {Cayman) Lasiod
felss i Fnanchy stsemen s S de pear snced 31 Deoemder 20952

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(e} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash amd due from banks compeiss cash al bank and en hand wilh banks, and shot-tenn, highly
liguid invesiments that ae readily comerditle into known amounts of cash and which are subject Lo an
insignificant sk of changas in value, heving been within three mentha of maturily af acquisiion.

{d) Forsign currancy

The Company's funclional and presentaticn curency is Uniled Stabes Dollass (USDY). Foseign
cumency bransactions durng the yeor ane transtated into LSO at tho loreign exchange rabes niling at
lhe Iransaction dates. Monetary sssals and iabfilies denominated in foreign curencies are renslled
ko USD &l the foregn machange mbes rling at the and of the repocing perod. Exchenge gains and
losses are recngmesed in the profil or loes.

Moa-monetary assets and kablites that ame measured in terms of historical cost in a forsign cuarency
are translaled inle USD using the forelgn echange rates nding al the transaction dates. Mon-
monatary assets and labiites dencminated In forelgn cumancies that are stated A fair value ase
translated wsing the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was detemingd. Forgign
curency differences arsing on retranslation are recognised in profit of loss.

(e} Other assels

Ohher assets are infliaty recognised at fair waue and thereafler stated af amorised cost less
Expecied Credit Loss (ECLY) (refer in Note 20g)), excopt whore the recohmbles are intenest-free
loans mads to related pardies without any fed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immatedal, In such cases, the ncehables are stated ot cost less imgairment for bad and doubtful
debls.

() Pravisions and contingent abililies

Froviskens ans recognised for labBies of unceran timing or amzunt when the Company has 2 legal
o constructive cbligation ansing a3 a result of & past svend, It = probable thal an cuthow of sconomic
benefiis will ba required to setie the chigation and a refiable estimate cash be made. Whare the time
velse of mongy is maleral, provisions ans skated at the present velue of the expendilure expecled o
gettie the obigation.

Whane it iz nol probabla that an cutfiow of economic banafits will ba requirad, or the amourd cannod
ba aslmated relably the obioalion = disclasas as 3 conlingent labiky, unless {ne arababily of
outflow of aconamic benefits i ramote, Possible chlications, whosa sxistences wil anly ba confirmas
by the cooumence ar non-occumence of o or mons future events ane dlso disdosed as condingent
faciiies wrdess the probabiity of outliow of econamic benefds B remole.

(g} Impairment

Tira carying amount of 1he Comparys assets is raviewssd at the end of sach reporting paricd to
deterring whether thera is any obsctive evidance of impalment. If any such objsctive euldence
egsts, the assets recovemble amount is estmated at the end of each reporting poded. An
impainment loss s recognissd whenever the camying amourt of an asset cxcesds Hs recoverable
amcnt, Impaimment kosses ame recognised inihe profit or loss.

Lirder IFRRS 2, the impaiment requiremenls spply prorarily to fnardal sssels measured al amosfised
cast. The mpairment requirarrents ane based on a forward-ooking specied credd joss meda by
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2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(g} Impairment (continued)

nowporating reassnatle and supporiable fonecazts of future economic condtlions avallable at the
reporting date. This requires considerabls udgemeant dver how changes In ecenomic faclors affect
ECL=, which i datermined an a probabiliby-waighted basis,

{h} Revenue recagnition

Provided that & is probehle that the soonomic berefits wil fiow 1o the Compasy and the revenue and
costs, if applcable, can ba measurad relizbly, senice fes ncome © recogniced in profit or loss when
tha investrmant managamerd servics i provided,

(i) Expenses
All expenzses are recognised in profid 2nd loss onan accual basls,
() Related parties

For the purpeses of thess financikl statements, » party is considersd ta be mlatsd fo the Company if:
{a)  Apersen, o 8 close member of lhal person’s lamily, & mlaled to the Company E that person:
{)  has contral or joint control over the Company;
1} has sgolicant influence cwar the Company; ar
fif} s 3 membar of tha key management personnel of the Company or the Company's
|BI'ETI:.

iB)  Anentity is refzted 10 the Comaany if any of the following conddions apphes:

i The eniity and the Congany are members of the sama group (which means that sach
porent, subsidiony and lellow subsidany = relaled o ha others).

) One enlity is an associale o joint venture of the other endify {or an associste or joind
vanture of & mamber of a group of which the olher entity i a mamber),

(i)  Bolh enfites ane joint ventures of the same (hind pary.

() One enlily is a joint ventura of & thisd party and the other eaffly is an associale of the
thardl party,

) The selily & a post-emphoymant beneft plan for the benadit of emplovees of elther the
Coenpany or an entify ralated o0 the Company,

i) The enlity 's controlled or jobrlly controlled By 2 person Mendified In ().

fuil) A person identfied in (2)() has significant influsnce over the entily o is @ member of the
keyy managzment personned of the ently (or of a parent of the enlity).

Clese members of the family of a parson ame thoss family mambas who may be sspected o
mfluenoe, or be influenced by, thal parson in their deaiings with the entity,

(k} Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period

The Company has nol edopled any new slandards or armendments having material imgact on the
fnancl position, resull of operaiions of cash liows in the owrant year.

10
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The LASE has ssued a number of amendmants lo IFRSs that are first effeclva for the cument
accourting period of the Compary. Tne adoption of thess amendrments hat no mefadal mpact o tha
Comgany's financial position, resul of operalicns or cash flows.

The Company has not agplied any new slandass or Inerpretation thad is not vot effectie for the

currerl accounting period (Mate 15},

4. Total Interest Income

usD 2022 021
Total interest income

Inmarest income an cash and dus from backs i 1541
Total intarest income T 143% 1,54t

Al the above inberes! income on nstruments are al emordised cosl.

5. Service Fee Income

The pincipsl acthiias of fhe Company are the creation of frusts and the adminlstrabion and

management of asseds in trusts,

Fevenue represents mvesimenl marsgement fee income eamesd rom ledow subsidany as fobows:

LUsD 2022 2021
Service fee inzome 215,000 212,000

Talal service fee ncome

205.000 210,000

B. General, Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

usp 2022 o
General administrative and other operating expenses
Pk el o ST e T R S L8] {1
“Auditor ramunerstion : % T BgaATe B

Direclors' remuneralion

_(108.17%) (106,435

Total genaral sdministrative and other oparating sxpansas (112.703) (111,758

Al of the above expenditures are pavable to the Company's Immediale hofding company and the
immediate ho'ding comoany setties such expenditures on ehalt of the Company.

7. Taxation

Thera are no {ams on incoma of gaing i e Cayman 1slanss and tha Comgany has recehad an
undertaking from fhe Gowemer in Coundl of the Cayman lslands exemating it from all focal incoms,
profiis and capital taves untd 10 October 2038, Accordingly, no provision for Income axes & Includad

In these financial statements

1
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8. Unconsolidated Strustured Entities
Spovenoraa wroonsobdated stuciurad enbias

The Company considers Sself the sporsor of 2 structured anlity when sither i3 name appears in the
narre of the stroctured entlly or in products issued by f or there is a general expectation from the
mariet that the Compary i assecialed with the structured entity or the Company was imvobed in fha
design or set up of the structured entity and has a fom of imechvement with the streciured entity.

The below unconsolidaled sinucluned andities are sponsorad by the Company whene a fized anrual
maragement fes ol LISD 5,000(2021: USD 5.000) is reeaived bl no iflemst 8 he'd by fhe
Company as at 31 Decambar 2020

LS High Div Equity Premium Fund (Far Ouaiified Institutional Irvestors Oaly)

.JS Senall Cap Equity Pretium Fued (For Qualified [astituticnal Irvestors Orly)

Darwa Emerging Local Market Bond Fund (For Qualfied Instituional Investors Oniy)
US Preferred REIT Incorre Fund (For Quaified Instilubonal Imvestors Only) _________©
Jagan Equily Premium Fund (For Qualiled Insliuliona wesies Qolyy
NE/MYAM US RETT Income Fund (For Qualified Instiwional Investors Cnly)

Dawa LK High Dkigend Eouty Fund (For Oualified Instiutional Ibwestors Cinky)

l, L.P. Fund
Brazil Equity Aipna Fund {For Quaiified Institutional Investors Oniy)

Dawa Braziian Real Band Fund (For Cusdlied nstifutional imvesiors Only)_

MNssay Japan Equly Ackve Fund (For Cuaifid nstissional vesiors On) -~~~ 7777

AV Augirala REM Fund - Ousllied iehaboral iovasioa Crl) ________ . _

---------------------------------------------------------
T B R R R T T R e e T I A e W e
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8.  Uncoensolidated Structured Entities (continued)

AR et dou L4 Tuch \anwwiluad
SR Rt T e e, s s s s s sn s b

_____________________________________________________

Premaim ﬁn_"',r_Sllr'_aEuﬂr Furd

Glchal REIT Incame Alpha Fund (For Dualfied Instiutional Invastaes Orky

* The funds wers terrinaied during 2002,

The Cormpany has rot provided financial or other suppoet 1o unconeoidated structured entitles that it
was not contractually mouired to prside.

The Company does nol curmently have lhe infention to provide fnencial o olber suppod o
unconsalidated strochured entilies hat it s nol contraciually required lo provida.

8. Cash and Due from Banks

Cash and cash aquiviients comprise:

uso 2022 2021
Cash and due from banks

Cash and dua from banks ) ) 1,584,033 1,758,688
Total cash and due from banks 1,984,033 1,769,688

10. Other Assets and Other Liabilities

uso 022 2021
Othar assats

Irferes! and lees recermble $U50,86< £10.653
Tatal other assats 205,864 210,863
UsD 2022 20
Othar liabilities

Irlzrest and lees payable 236,508 203,93
Total other liabilities 336,526 223531

13
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11. Share Capital

(a) Authorised and issued share capital

20232 2021 ==
No. of usD M. of UsD
shares shares

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of USD 1 each 1,000,000 1,000,000 1000000 1,000,000

lsswad and fully paid up: -
CQindinary gharas 735,000 735000  T3IHON0  V3IH000

Tha hokders of crfinary shares ams enlillsd ta mesve dhidande as deziansd from timea to tine and are
anftied o one vote par thare at general meetings of the Compary. All ordingry shares rank equaly
with régard 1o the Companys residual aszats,

(b) Capital management

The Company's primary chjectives when managing capdsl em to safeguard the Company’s ability 1o
conlinue &s 2 going concemn o that | can eontinus fo previce retumns to sharsholders, by pricing
ganicss commensurately with the lsvel of risk and by sscuing access 90 financs 2t 2 rsasonable
cast. As the Company is part of a larger group, the Company’s sources of additional cagital and
policias for disticution of mucess cazial may ales be affecied by the group’s cepifal manegement
ohjectas. The Company defines “capital’ as nduding all compenents of equity,

The Companys cepilal slruciure i regularly reviewad and managed wilh dus ragard to fhe capitsl
manggement prachioes of the group lo which tha Comparny belongs. Adjustments are mads io the
capital stnechure in bghl ol cheanges in economic conddions affecting the Company or the group, to
the mxtsnt that thess do not confict with the dresciore’ fiduciany duties towards the Company.

Tha Compary was not subject to cxlemally imposed capial requirements in the current pariod.
12.  Financial Risk Managament and Fair Values

Exposure 1o credil, Fquidiy, interes| rale and foresgn cumency rsks arises in the normal course of he
Corpary’s businass. These risks sm managed by the Company's finandial management policies and
praciices describad balow

(@) Credft risk

The Comgpany's credit sk s primaiy alfsibutable lo amourls due Trom group companies and cash at
bank, Cradif risk s delned as risk fhat one party %o a financial inglrument wil cause a financhal loss to
another pacty by failing to discharge an obigation. Managament regularly monitors s risk exposun to
ersurs thal its credit fsh ig kept fo a minimal level. The madmum exposure fo credil dsk ks
represanted by the camying amount of each financial assel in the statement of financial position afier
deducting any Impaiment alowancs,
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12.  Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (continued)

(b Ligedetily risk

The Company's policy is to regulady menfior s Gquidly requiremanis 1o salisly ils confraciual end
reasenably {oreseeabls obiigations as they fell due.

A1 31 December 2022 and 2021, all of he Company's financia! lobBlios, which inciudes all creditors
and accneals, ase on demand or undated and ane expacied to be sotlied Bobwoon thres 1o teslwe
ranths,

) flarast rate risk

The Company i= sxposad do enest rala risk only to the extert that it eams bank nterest on cash
and deposiis. At 31 Decemnber 2022 and 20217, a change In imerest rates would have no direct
material effect on the carying value of the recognised assets o liabilties of the Comgzany.

() Forelgn currency risk

The Cormpany 4 sxposed lo forsign curmency ssh primarily throegh cerain ransactions which gie rise
to payables that are dencminated in Hong Kong doflars ("HKDY)L

A5 the HRD s pegoed o the USD, the Company consaders thet the risk of movemenis in exchangs
rates bebween US0 and HKD to ke insignificant.

(&) Fair valves

The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial instruments carded at cost or amortised cost are nol
matedalby diffseard fram thelr fair walue as at 31 December 20522 and 2081,

13. Malerial Related Party Transactions

In gddition to lhe essacliens and balences disclosed elsewhers in (he linancal slalemenls, the
Compary enterad ino the fofowing matedal related parly transactions.

{2} Related party balance sheet transactions

31 December 2002 31 December 2021
Parant léalnw Tokal Parent Ealluw Takal
roup raLp
LUsh Companies Companies
Lazals
Oiher asasls - 205,564 P05,564 - RS D0sad
Tolal asscts = 205,884 205,884 - 210,863 210,863
Liabilitias and
Equity _
Otrarablites 396506 pEEEEEL e e e o) e o AT
Shae capitel TE5,000 - Ta5,000 TRE,000 - 735,000
Tolal liabikbes and
sharehalders’
sauity 1,071,526 — 1071526 958931 — 958,531
13
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13.  Matenal Related Party Transactions (continued)

() Related party revenuss and expenses

51 Decamber 2022 ____ 31 Ducember 7021
Parant Fallow Tekal Parest Ellm Total

Group
ush Companies mmns?;
Ravenuas
Senfcefeeincome - __ 206000 206000 - __ 210000 210000
Total ravenuas - 205,000 205,000 - 210,000 210,000

(2} Remuneration of key management parsonnel

Remunaration of key managamant personnal mr._n;- 2022 a0
Sher=team amplves baralis 108,178 108458
Total Remuneration of key management personnel 106,175 106,485

14. Parent and Ultimate Holding Company

At 31 Decambar 2008, the immediale parent of the Company is Cradit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limiled,
which & incerporated in Hong Hong and the wlimale conloling party of {he Company i Cradit
Suizse Group AG, which & incorparaled in Swilsetand. Credil Suisse Group AR praduces firancial
slatements availebiz [or public use.

From 12 June 2023, the ultimate controling party of the Company s UBS Group AG, which is
incarporated In Switredand upen comoletion of the merger with Crodit Susse Group AG [Mlhe
e} mentionad in Mote 2(b).

15. Possible Impact of Amendments, Mew Standards and Interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2022

Certain new accoundng slandards, amendmenis o accounting siandasds and inlerprelations have
baen publshed that are not mandatory for 81 December 2022 reporting periods and heve not been
sarly adopled by {ha Compary. Thesa standanis, amendmante o interpratations are ot axpacled to
have & matedal impact on the enlily in the current or fulure reporting padeds and on forecesable
fuiure transactions.

16. Subsequent Events

As sel oul in Mote b, on 19 March 5028, Credit Suisse Group AG and UBS Group AG entarad
infe an agreament and gian of marger, which vas compieted on 12 June 2003, From 12 June 2083,
the Company Is a consolidated subsidlary of UBS Group AG, and 25 suzh the fture epenmtions and
financial performance of the Comparny mey be impacted as a result of the manger and the impast
yet o be delermined.

17. Approval of Financial Stalements

The financial slalemerts wene apgroved for issue by the beard of direclors of the Company on 15
June 3.
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Elian Trustee Cayman Limited

2023 100 3,977
Intertrust N.V.
MUFG Fund Services (Cayman)
Limited
2023
699
2023 781
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Credit Suisse International

2023 113 6,600 5,886 2,582
1990 1985
2500199 1990
2000 27
2006 16
Aktiengesel Ischaft
E14 4QJ +44(0)20 7888 8888
E58DKGMJIYYYJLN8C3868

1990 16

Credit Suisse AG

40

Daiwa Asset Management (Europe)
Ltd

2023 500,000 8,685

1987

2023 31
173.69
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1999 26
Elian Trustee Cayman Limited
MUFG Fund Services (Cayman)
Limited
Credit Suisse International
Daiwa Asset Management (Europe)
Ltd
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Trustee

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Foreign Currency Denominated Man AHL Smart Leverage
Strategy Fund (the “Series Trust”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at January 31, 2023,
the statements of comprehensive income, changes in net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable
units and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Series Trust as at January 31, 2023, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Trustee (continued)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Series Trust's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going
concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

June 2, 2023
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Independent Auditor®s Report
To the Board of Directors of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The financial statements of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the “Company”), which
are set out on pages 4 to 16, comprise:

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022;

the statement of income for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company as at 31 December 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs").

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAs”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the

International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.
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Independent Auditor®s Report (continued)
To the Board of Directors of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 2(b) to the financial statements, which describes the merger on 12
June 2023 (the “merger”) between Credit Suisse Group AG (the ultimate parent of the Company
before the merger) and UBS Group AG (the ultimate parent of the Company after the merger),
which may have an impact on the Company"s future operations and financial performance and
the impact is yet to be determined. This matter indicates that a material uncertainty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the Company®s ability to continue as a going concern. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Company®s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor®s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor®s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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Independent Auditor®s Report (continued)
To the Board of Directors of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company"s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors® use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company"s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor™s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor®"s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 15 June 2023
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